
 

 
Meeting of:   

 
Middleton Township Committee 

Date: Thursday 11th November 2021 
Time: 6.00 pm. 

 
Venue: Junction Library and Community Centre, 

Grimshaw Lane, Middleton, M24 2AA 
 
Item 
No. 

AGENDA Page No 
 
1   Apologies  

 

 To receive any apologies for absence.  
 
2   Declarations of Interest  

 

 Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.    

 

 
3   Urgent Items of Business  

 

 To determine whether there are any additional items of business 
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 

 

 
4   Items for Exclusion of Public and Press  

 

 To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 
be excluded from the meeting. 

 

 
5   Minutes  3 - 8 

 To consider the minutes of the meetings of the Middleton Township 
Committee held on 15th July 2021 and 19th August 2021. 

 

 
6   Open Forum  

 

 Half an hour has been set aside for members of the public to raise any 
issues relevant to the business of the Committee and the Township. 

 

Public Document Pack



 
  

7   Objection to Proposed Traffic Order, Installation of Zebra 
Crossing, Kirkway, Alkrington, Middleton  

9 - 15 

 To consider an objection to a Proposed Traffic Order - Installation of 
Zebra Crossing, Kirkway, Alkrington, Middleton 

 

 
8   Highways LTP Capital Programme 2022/24  16 - 21 

 To consider the Highways LTP Capital Programme 2022/24.  
 
9   Secondary School Places 2022 - 2025  22 - 28 

 To consider Secondary School Places 2022 – 2025.  
 
10   Need for Primary School Places 2022-25  29 - 46 

 To consider Primary School Places 2022-25.  

 

Middleton Township Committee Members 
Councillor Phil Burke Councillor Patricia Mary Dale 
Councillor Neil Emmott Councillor Susan Emmott 
Councillor Peter Joinson Councillor Donna Martin E 
Councillor Kallum Nolan Councillor Linda Robinson 
Councillor Sara Rowbotham Councillor Susan Smith 
Councillor Terrance Smith Councillor Carol Wardle 
Councillor June West Councillor Donna Williams 
Councillor Peter Williams  
 

For more information about this meeting, please contact  
Alison James – Committee and Constitutional Services  
Telephone: 01706 924711 
E-mail: alison.james@rochdale.gov.uk



MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
Thursday, 15 July 2021 

 
PRESENT:  Councillor West (Chair); Councillors Burke, Dale, Joinson, Martin, 
Nolan, Rowbotham, Smith, Smith, Wardle, Williams and Williams 
 
OFFICERS:  L. Mason, I. Trickett and M. Aiken (Neighbourhoods Directorate) 
and A. James (Resources Directorate) 
 
ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:  3 members of the public 
 

6 APOLOGIES 
Apologies were received from Councillors Neil Emmott, Susan Emmott and 
Robinson. 
 

7 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
Declarations of interest were made as follows:- 
 

 Councillor Peter Williams made personal and prejudcial interests in the 
submitted funding application for Alkrington Play Area (South Ward) 
(Appendix 4e) and left the room during the consideration of the item; 

 
 Councillor Nolan and Councillor Donna Williams declared personal and 

prejudicial interests in the submitted funding application from Middleton 
Town Centre Management function (including Christmas lights switch 
on) (Appendix 5b) and left the room during the consideration of the 
item; 

 
8 APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIR 

Resolved: 
That Councillor Donna Williams be appointed Vice Chair of Middleton 
Township Committee for the 2021/2022 Municipal Year. 
 

9 URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
The Chair indicated that there had been four additional applications for 
funding accepted onto the Agenda and that these had been published on the 
Council website and circulated to Members of the Committee. 
 

10 OPEN FORUM 
The following matters were raised under the Open Forum: 
 

a) Planning Matters  
In response to a representation from Mr P Shaw about the ability of local 
Councillors to influence planning applications, Committee Members 
commented that the ability to exert influence had changed due to Government 
legislation. 
 

b) Regeneration Projects in Middleton 

Page 3

Agenda Item 5



In response to a representation from Mr P Shaw about investment in 
regeneration projects in Middleton, it was suggested that the Portfolio Holder 
for Economy and Communications be invited to a Township Meeting to outline 
investment and projects in Middleton. 
 

11 MINUTES - MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE 
Resolved: 
That the Minutes of the meetings of the Middleton Township Committee held 
on 12th November 2020 and 11th March 2021, be approve as correct records. 
 

12 MINUTES - MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP DEVOLVED FUNDING AND 
DEVOLVED SERVICES SUB COMMITTEE 
Resolved: 
That the Minutes of the meetings of the Middleton Township Devolved 
Funding and Devolved Services Sub-Committee held on 10th December 2020 
and 11th March 2021, be noted. 
 

13 MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP DELEGATION ARRANGEMENTS AND 
APPOINTMENTS 2021/2022 
The Township Committee considered a report of the Director of Resources 
seeking confirmation of the delegated decision making arrangements for the 
year and appointments to Township Sub-Committees, including the Chair and 
Vice Chair and other bodies for 2021/2022. 
  
Alternatives considered: 
The Committee could choose not to appoint to sub-committees and undertake 
all delegated functions themselves, but this may have a detrimental impact on 
the ability to progress Township priorities or deal with urgent items of 
business. 
  
Resolved: 

1. That approval be given to the Sub-Committee structure of the 
Middleton Township Committee, comprising the Middleton Township 
Devolved Funding and Services Sub-Committee and the terms of 
reference for the Sub-Committee as detailed within Appendix 1 of the 
submitted report; 

  
2. The following appointments be made for 2020/2021:- 

  
·          Middleton Devolved Funding and Devolved Services Sub-Committee 
  

All Middleton Township Committee Members 
  Councillor West (Chair) 

Councillor Donna Williams (Vice-Chair) 
  
·          Middleton Township Delegated Sub-Committee 

Not be appointed by matters and functions be delegated to the 
Middleton Devolved Funding and Devolved Services Sub-Committee or 
the Chair and Vice Chair of the Township Committee as necessary. 

  

Page 4



·          Middleton Township Environment and Culture Forum 
  All Middleton Township Committee Members 

Councillor West (Chair) 
  
·     Middleton Regeneration and Transport Working Party 
        All Middleton Township Committee Members 
  Councillor West (Chair) 
  
·      Langley Estate Strategy Group 
  Councillor Susan Smith; Substitute Member – Councillor Burke 
         

Middleton Town Centre Management Company and Middleton Market 
Company 

  
Appointments deferred until the next meeting of the Township 
Committee (Councillor Nolan and Councillor Donna Williams to remain 
until the next meeting of the Committee) 

 
Brentwood Day Centre – Management Committee 
Councillor Donna Williams 

  
Highways Champion 
Councillor West 
  
Township Planning Panel 
Councillors Susan Smith, Robinson, Dale, Terry Smith, Nolan and West. 
  
Reasons for the decision: 
 
The Council has established and appoints Township Committees that may 
exercise both executive and non-executive powers as set out in the 
Responsibility for Council Functions in Part 3 of the Constitution. The Sub-
Committee exercises either delegated powers or acts on any matter detailed 
in the Committee’s Terms of Reference on which it is essential to take a 
decision. The proper appointment of Sub-Committees is required to permit the 
undertaking of delegated functions in accordance with statutory and 
procedural requirements, and appointments to Working Groups and Other 
Bodies are required to enable the Township Committee to undertake and to 
respond to the full range of issues relevant to the Township. 
Eligible for call in – no  
 

14 MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP FUNDS REVIEW 
The Township Committee considered the report of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods which presented a review of the Township revenue and 
capital expenditure during 2020/2021 and provided options for the allocation 
of funds during 2021/2022.  
 
The Township Committee was also requested to approve the allocation of 
Middleton Township Funds to funding streams, to authorise the terms and 

Page 5



conditions, and to agree delegation arrangements concerning funding 
decisions 
 
Alternatives Considered: 
The Committee could decide whether or not to approve the allocation of funds 
to funding streams and adopt the terms and conditions. 
 
Resolved: 
1.    That the expenditure, commitments and balances for Middleton Township 
revenue and capital funds at financial year end 2020/2021 be noted; 
2.    That the findings of the review of Township Funds 2020/2021 and 
evaluations received to date, for some of the projects funded, be noted; 
3.    That the allocation of Middleton Township Funds to funding streams in 
2021/2022 be approved (Option 1 for Revenue Fund and Option 1 for Capital 
Fund); 
4.    That the terms and conditions for Middleton Township’s Revenue and 
Capital Funds for 2021/2022 be approved; 
5.    That the delegation arrangements for Middleton Township Funds 
2020/2021, as detailed at paragraph 4.6 of the submitted report, be approved. 
 
Reasons for the Decisions: 
The management of the Middleton Township Fund is a function that has been 
delegated to the Middleton Township Devolved Funding and Devolved 
Services Sub Committee. Middleton Township Funds were allocated to 
projects that benefit the Township’s community and environment, and which 
realised the Township’s priorities. 
Eligible for call in – yes  
 

15 MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP FUNDS 2021/22 
The Committee considered the report of the Director of Neighbourhoods 
which provided an update on revenue and capital expenditure, commitments 
and balances of Middleton Township Funds 2021/2022 and to enable the 
Committee to consider the allocation of funds to proposed projects. 
 
Alternatives considered: 
In considering the report, Members could decide whether or not to approve 
the allocation of funds to projects. 
 
Resolved: 

1. That the expenditure, commitments and balances for Middleton 
Township revenue and capital funds as detailed in Appendix 1 and 2 of 
the report be noted;  

2. That the decisions made under delegated authority as detailed in 
Appendix 3 of the report be noted;  

3. That it be noted that the Townships and Communities Manager has 
assessed proposed projects to be considered for funding against the 
criteria of eligibility for the Middleton Township Fund, the priorities of 
the Township and that any specific risks had been identified in the 
report;  

4. That the applications for Township Funds be dealt with as follows:-  

Page 6



 
APPLICATION DECISION 

Access improvements to Tonge 
Field 

Allocation of £1980 from Township 
Projects Fund 

New Lane Bollards Allocation of £1199 from Township 
Capital Funds 

Alkrington Woods Interpretation 
Panels 

Allocation of £2737.80 from Township 
Capital Funds 

Haslam Street Waiting Restrictions Allocation of £4000 from East Ward 
Revenue Funds 

Alkrington Play Area (South Ward) Application deferred for further 
consideration of appropriate sites (with 
the funding allocation of £23,400 ring 
fenced from Ward and Township funds) 

Ennerdale Road Fence Panel 
Replacement 

Allocation of £1170 from West Ward 
Revenue Funds 

Middleton Town Centre 
Management function (including 
Christmas lights switch on) 

Allocation of £17,147 from Township 
Events Fund 

Hazelhurst Drive and Hollin Lane 
junction pedestrian guardrail  

Application deferred 

Windermere Road Bollards Allocation of £286 from West Ward 
Capital funds 
 

 
Reasons for the Decisions 
 
Management of the Middleton Township Fund is delegated to the Middleton 
Township Devolved Funding & Devolved Services Sub Committee. 
 
Middleton Township Funds are allocated to projects that benefit the 
Township’s community and environment, and realise the Township priorities. 
 
To enable the committee to monitor and review the use of the Middleton 
Township Funds to ensure continued efficient and effective use of the fund. 
Eligible for call – in  
 

Page 7



MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
Thursday, 19 August 2021 

 
PRESENT: Councillor West (Chair), Councillors Dale, Neil Emmott, Susan Emmott, 
Joinson, Martin, Rowbotham, Susan Smith, Terry Smith, Donna Williams and Peter 
Williams 

 
OFFICERS: L. Mason (Township Officer) and M. Garraway (Committee and 
Constitutional Services Manager) 
 
Apologies for Absence:  Councillor Phil Burke, Councillor Kallum Nolan, Councillor 
Linda Robinson and Councillor Carol Wardle 
 
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
16 Councillor Donna Williams declared a personal interest in the agenda item - 
Appointment to the Middleton Town Centre Management Board/Middleton Market 
Board, on the grounds of being as a serving Member of the Board for the previous 
municipal year. 
 
APPOINTMENTS TO THE MIDDLETON TOWN CENTRE MANAGEMENT 
BOARD/MIDDLETON MARKET BOARD 
17 Consideration was given to a report of the Monitoring Officer which sought 
appointment to the Middleton Town Centre Management Board/Middleton Market 
Board. 
 
Alternatives considered 
No alternatives were considered. 
 
Resolved 
1. That Councillors June West and Peter Williams be appointed to the 

Middleton Town Centre Management Board/Middleton Market Board for 
2021/22. 

2. That the Monitoring Officer be requested to review the governance 
arrangements for the Middleton Town Centre Management 
Board/Middleton Market Board and report to a future meeting of the 
Township Committee. 

 
Reason for resolution 
The Township Committee is delegated authority to appoint Members to the Board. 
 

Page 8



Report to Middleton Township Committee 
 

Date of Meeting 11th November 2021 
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Highways and Housing  
Report Author Darren McCrohan 

 Public/Private Document Public  
 

Objection to Proposed Traffic Order 
Installation of Zebra Crossing, Kirkway, Alkrington, Middleton 

 
Executive Summary 

 
1.1 Local representation received via Members had raised concern around 

pedestrian safety (including use by vulnerable road users) along the traffic 
calmed 20mph section of Kirkway, south of its junction with Kingsway. 
 

1.2 Middleton Township subsequently approved the investigation and development 
of an appropriate scheme. 
 

1.3 Identified through a subsequent site meeting with Members, a Zebra crossing 
scheme was developed and advertised in accordance with Member aspirations 
for enhancing pedestrian safety at the point of an established desire-line to the 
south of the junction. 
 

1.4 The approved scheme was advertised formally through a Notice of Intent posted 
on 2nd September 2021.  Two objections were received and this report provides 
consideration and appropriate recommendation. 

 
Recommendation 

 
1.5 Committee should consider whether the Traffic Regulation Order, (Borough of 

Rochdale, (Kirkway, Middleton), (Proposed Installation of Zebra Crossing)) be 
implemented as advertised, be amended, or be abandoned in light of the 
objections received (provided as Appendix C to this report). 
 

1.6 It is the recommendation of Highways that the original scheme should be 
implemented as advertised to appropriately enhance crossing safety along an 
established pedestrian desire-line without detriment to local access. 

 
1.7 If the crossing is approved it will require an amendment to the existing traffic 

calming features which will require a further period of public consultation.  It is 
recommended should any objections be received that Committee delegates the 
decision to the Chair of Middleton Township Committee and the Portfolio for 
Highways, to expedite the installation of the crossing.   

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 7



Reason for Recommendation 

Copy of Statement of Reasons: 
1.8 “The scheme seeks to enhance pedestrian safety and support active travel within 

a residential area in close proximity to Alkrington Primary School. 
 

1.9 Despite an existing 20mph speed limit operational with associated traffic calming 
features, local representation has raised concerns around crossing safety along 
Kirkway in the vicinity of its junction with Kingsway.   
 

1.10 Therefore, complementary to existing pedestrian traffic islands along Kingsway 
approaches, a Zebra Crossing facility is proposed along Kirkway at the point of 
an established pedestrian desire-line to the south of the junction.   
 

1.11 As shown on the supporting plan, the scheme will include the removal of grass 
verges and reconstruction of footways along Kirkway local to the proposed 
crossing.   
 

1.12 The adjacent junction has good visibility and the implementation of associated 
‘zig-zag’ markings along Kirkway will further enhance this by restricting 
indiscriminate parking in the vicinity of the crossing without detriment to existing 
access. 
 

1.13 The proposals will enhance safety for pedestrians and other road users at this 
location. 
 

1.14 The site is not Strategic Highway.” 
 

1.15 The proposed design as advertised is presented as Appendix A to this report. 
 

Key Points for Consideration 
 

1.16 Two objections were received after formal advertisement of intention and are 
included verbatim as Appendix C to this report. 
 

1.17 The following provides Highways interpretation and response on each of the key 
objection points received, supporting the recommendation made herein. 

 

Key Issues Raised Highways Response 

a. The area is an existing traffic 
calmed 20mph Zone and does 
not justify the introduction of 
additional measures. 

The proposal responds directly to local resident and 
Member concerns raised over pedestrian safety despite 
the presence of these existing measures.   
The proposed Zebra crossing will satisfy and better provide 
for an existing pedestrian desire-line and it has been 
designed to appropriate standards. 
While traffic calming helps to regulate vehicle speeds it 
does not give a pedestrian any priority over vehicular 
traffic.  A Zebra crossing will give pedestrians priority over 
vehicles thus supporting and encouraging walking in the 
area. 

 

Page 10



b. Proposed hazard lines for the 
crossing will pass in-front of three 
existing driveways that are in 
regular use. 

Hazard lines are included to appropriate standards in the 
interests of protecting inter-visibility between pedestrians 
crossing and drivers. 
They will not prevent access to adjacent residential 
driveways.  On the contrary, they will protect access and 
enhance visibility for residents through the prevention of 
any indiscriminate parking along key sight lines.  

c. The hazard lines will prevent 
parking outside of adjacent 
property. 

It is correct that the hazard lines will prevent parking local 
to the proposed Zebra crossing but is included in 
accordance with design regulations and requirements of 
the Highway Code in the interests of enhancing operational 
safety both for the crossing and adjacent junction. 
Adjacent off-road parking already exists and there is ample 
kerbside parking available in the locality sufficient to 
accommodate any limited displacement that may arise. 

d. There is concern over an 
increase in light (flashing ambers) 
and for greater noise pollution 
and vibration associated with 
vehicles accelerating and 
decelerating for the proposed 
crossing. 

Consistent with similar Zebra crossing installations 
elsewhere, lighting will be appropriately screened to avoid 
any light disruption to adjacent residents.   
Highways do not consider there would be a material 
deterioration in either traffic noise or vibration given 
proximity of the proposed installation to the already 
operational raised junction with Kingsway where traffic is 
already accelerating / decelerating accordingly. 
There is precedent for Zebra crossing installations in 
residential locations such as this and it is considered that 
the operational safety benefits of a controlled crossing will 
far outweigh any minor change in traffic noise.    

e. There is concern associated with 
adjacent trees obscuring the 
proposed crossing and also, that 
the crossing poles could interfere 
with visibility when emerging from 
adjacent driveways. 

The proposed scheme has been independently Road 
Safety Audited.   
Nearby street vegetation will be maintained by the Council 
so as not to compromise forward visibility of the crossing. 
Additionally, proposed crossing poles are designed and 
shall be implemented to a standard size.  Neither their 
dimension nor positioning are considered to detrimentally 
impact visibility / safety for users of the adjacent driveways. 

 
 
1.18 Should Committee decide not to introduce the crossing along the desire-line as 

proposed then the original concerns raised through Township will not be 
appropriately addressed. 
 

1.19 Should Committee seek to change the location of the crossing it would require 
the legal process to be re-undertaken.  It is not thought there are any suitable 
alternative locations near to the desire line along Kingsway to positon the 
crossing. 
 

1.20 Should Committee approve the Zebra crossing at its proposed location there is 
a requirement to remove the existing raised junction plateau and replace it with 
a flat-top road hump at the crossing point.  In accordance with the Regulations, 
the change to the traffic calming will also need to be advertised. Should any 
objections be received it is recommended that Committee delegate the 
consideration of representations to the Chair of the Committee and the Portfolio 
for Highways to expedite the installation of the crossing.   

 
 

Page 11



Costs and Budget Summary 
 

1.21 The cost of the proposed Traffic Regulation Order and associated highway works 
was estimated to be in the order of £40,000 with Township approval for funding 
previously confirmed. 
 

1.22 Should Committee wish to make any material change to the advertised Traffic 
Regulation Order scheme, any associated redesign and further advertising would 
incur additional costs that would need to be met by Township. 

 
Risk and Policy Implications 

 
1.23 The scheme is promoted and recommended as part of the Council’s statutory 

responsibility to ensure that its highways operates safely and efficiently for all 
road users.  
 

Consultation 
 

1.24 Consultation, required by the Local Authorities’ Traffic Orders (Procedure) 
(England and Wales) Regulations 1996, has taken place. 
 

1.25 Statutory consultation was undertaken in July 2021 with emergency services and 
Transport for Greater Manchester. 
 

1.26 Notices of Intention were posted on-site and published in the local newspaper on 
2nd September 2021 (included as Appendix B to this report). 

 
 

Background Papers 
 

1.27 Not applicable. 
 
 
 

For Further Information Contact: Darren McCrohan 
01706 924518  
darren.mccrohan@rochdale.gov.uk 

  

Page 12



APPENDIX A – Scheme Plan 

 

  

Page 13



APPENDIX B – Notice of Intention 

 

 
 
  

Page 14



APPENDIX C – Objection(s) Received 

Objection 1 – as received 
From:   
Sent: 02 September 2021 19:10 
To: Traffic Orders <traffic.orders@rochdale.gov.uk> 
Subject: Proposed crossing Kirkway H27/01 
Importance: High 
 
To whom this may concern,  
Reference:H27/01  
I would like to object against the proposed zebra crossing on the grounds that it is an 
accident waiting to happen. As the hazard lines run over three driveways which are in 
constant use one of which is attached to ########## and is in constant use with a high 
sided van when coming in and out of the drive way it will create a blind spot when 
oncoming drivers approach the crossing and won’t be able to see the pedestrian on the 
pavement.  
Also I am concern that the 24hour flashing beacon is directly outside our bedroom 
window. 
Many Thanks, 

 
Objection 2 – as received 
From:   
Sent: 03 September 2021 13:34 
To: Traffic Orders <traffic.orders@rochdale.gov.uk> 
Subject: Kirkway Zebra crossing 
 
Dear Sir/madam,  
 
I have seen a notice appear on Kirkway regarding a new Zebra Crossing, this is the corner 
of Kirkway and kingsway. 
 
I would like to object this decision for the following reasons 
1. Kirkway is already a 20mph road. 
2. Kirkway already has speed bumps. 
3. If its parking on the corner, yellow lines could be added  
4. The propose plans show the markings passing my property which means I will not be 
able to park outside. I recently bought the property 27th August as this was available. My 
elderly relatives will have to park further away when visiting. 
5. The crossing poles will cause blind spots when driving off the drive.  
6. The markings will cross my drive and dropped curbs. If a zebra crossing was already 
there, you would not be allowed to create a drive. Therefore you should not be allowed to 
create a zebra crossing. 
7. Trees will obsecure the crossing on the approach to the crossing for drivers. 
8. I believe this will devalue my property, as I have just moved in this is something 
important due to mortgage arrangements. 
9.The costs associated with the creation of the zebra crossing are significant, and we do 
not believe the proposal will significantly improve road safety. 
10.Increased noise, vibration, micro particles and artificial lighting disturbance by both the 
building of the crossing and use. For example the increased braking of cars directly 
outside our properties will release more potentially hazardous braking-system particles. 
11.Consuming the area outside our properties is also likely to reduce the saleability and/or 
value of our homes. 
12. With the already road safety restrictions in place as above, there is no evidence this 
would make the road any safer. 
 

Kind Regards 

Page 15



 

Report to Middleton Township Committee 
 

Date of Meeting 11th November 2021 
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Highways and Housing 
Report Author Michael Aiken 

 

Public/Private Document Public 

 

Highways LTP Capital Programme 2022/24 
 

 
Executive Summary 

 
1. The purpose of this report is for Members to note and approve the attached 

highways work programmes which are proposed to take place during the 
2022/23 and 2023/24 financial years.  
 
The attached programmes include the following –  
 

- 2 year local transport plan (LTP) funded capital programme. 
-  

Recommendation 
 
2. That the committee note and approve the proposed work programmes to be 

delivered in 2022/23 + 2023/24 

Reason for Recommendation 
 
3. 

 
The schemes that have been selected have been put together based on the 
principles of asset management which use network condition data, engineer 
inspections, life cycle planning and cost efficiency to produce the most 
efficient highway improvement over the course of the programmes.   
 
Using Asset management techniques for scheme selection ensures that we 
are in line with recommendations from the Department for Transport (DfT) 
enables us to continue to receive the full funding allocation from the DfT 
incentive fund scheme. Authorities that are deemed not to be carrying out 
efficient highway improvements can have funding reduced and in the case of 
Rochdale, the maximum reduction would be £410k. 
 
 
 

 

Page 16

Agenda Item 8



Key Points for Consideration 
 
4.  
 
 
 
4.1 

The recommended programmes have been put together to achieve the 
highest level of network improvement available with the allocated budget. 
 
 
Not agreeing this programme could potentially cause a reduction in the 
amount of funding Rochdale Borough Council (RBC) receive from the DfT   
 
 
Alternatives Considered 
 
No alternatives have been considered. The programme has been developed 
according to DfT guidance and in line with other GM Authorities.   
 

 
Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5. The anticipated LTP allocation for highways is £1.56m per year.  

 
The budgets with the exception of bridges and structures have been split 
into each Township according to population size. The budget splits are as 
follows - 
 

Township % Allocation 
Heywood 14 
Middleton 22 

Pennine 20 
Rochdale North 19 
Rochdale South 25 

 
Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6. If this programme is not implemented there is a possibility that Rochdale 

Council could receive a reduction in incentive funding from the DfT for not 
following the agreed principles of asset management for highway scheme 
selection. 

  
Consultation 

 
7. N/A 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 
8. N/A  

For Further Information Contact: Michael Aiken, , 
michael.aiken@rochdale.gov.uk 

Page 17



Township Ward Road From / To Est Length Est Area Treatment

Rochdale South Castl Finlan Road
Romac Logistics entrance - Boswell 

Way
251 2008 CW - Reconstruction

Rochdale South Castl Clifton Road Church Avenue - End 71 568 CW - Resurface

Rochdale South Mk&Dp Norman Road
South of Albion Street - Signals at 

Dane Street
396 3168 CW - Resurface

Rochdale South Bamfo Northdene Drive Bamford Way - End 224 1792 CW - Resurface

Rochdale South Kings Channing Square Channing Street - End 63 504 CW - Resurface

Rochdale North CRoch Cliff Street Cook Street - Dean Street Patch CW - Resurface

Rochdale North CRoch Roach Place
George Street - o/s No 7 Roach 

Street
111 888 CW - Resurface

Rochdale North Norde Caldershaw Road
Cut Lane (St Vincent Primary School 

entrance) - Edenfield Road
160 1280 CW - Resurface & Binder

Rochdale North CRoch Mayfield Street Dean Street - Albert Royd Street 270 2160 CW - Resurface

Rochdale North Norde Bankfield Lane Clay Lane - Mercer Lane 203 1624 CW - Resurface

Rochdale South Bamford Sudley Road Full Length 690 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Rochdale South Bamford Oxford Avenue Woodgate Avenue - Midge Hall Drive 478 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Rochdale South Bamford Brooklands Court No. 5 - End 1127 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Rochdale South Bamford Linnet Hill Rossmere Avenue - Cul-de-sac end 1439 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Rochdale North Norden Fisherfield Cut Lane - No. 39 1238 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Rochdale North Norden Woodhouse Lane No. 31 - No. 53 496 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Rochdale North Norden Hutchinson Road Full Length 1231 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Rochdale South Balderstone & 
Kirkholt

Seymour Grove Full Length 528 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Rochdale South Balderstone & 
Kirkholt

Darlington Road Full Length 1225 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Rochdale South Balderstone & 
Kirkholt

Hartley Lane Queensway - Lowther Road 638 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Rochdale South Balderstone & 
Kirkholt

Lowther Road Full Length 837 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Rochdale South Castleton Elton Street Full Length 340 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Rochdale South Castleton Progress Street Full Length 263 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Rochdale South Castleton Vicarage Road North No. 51 - No. 15 876 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Rochdale South Castleton Manley Road No. 15 - Bolton Road 634 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Page 18



Rochdale North
Spotland & 

Falinge
Spotland Tops Full Length 1581 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Rochdale North
Spotland & 

Falinge
Meadow View Opposite Ravendale Close x2 686 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Rochdale North
Spotland & 

Falinge
Belvoir Street Full Length 338 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Rochdale North Healey Belmont Way Full Length 1252 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Rochdale North Healey Sweet Briar Close Full Length 535 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Rochdale North Healey Glen Gardens Full Length 685 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Rochdale North Central Edward Street Full Length 680 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Rochdale North Central Denton Street Full Length 290 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Rochdale North Central Oldmill Street Full Length 548 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Rochdale South Kingsway Church Road Morningside Close - Channing Street 804 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Rochdale South Kingsway Stannybrook Close Full Length 866 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Rochdale South Kingsway Stiups Lane No. 26 - No. 64 1213 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Rochdale South Milkstone & 
Deeplish

Bosworth Street Full Length 707 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Rochdale South Milkstone & 
Deeplish

Norwich Street Full Length 786 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Rochdale South Milkstone & 
Deeplish

Sparth Bottoms Road Full Length 1778 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Middleton Township WMidd Hillcrest Hollin Lane - End 95 760 CW - Resurface & Binder

Middleton Township WMidd Broughton Close Milbeck Road - End 122 976 CW - Resurface & Binder

Middleton Township WMidd Fairbank Drive Milbeck Road - Seamess Road 131 1048 CW - Resurface & Binder

Middleton Township NMidd Wilkinson Street 0 - 63 57 456 CW - Resurface

Middleton Township NMidd Pilkington Street Hilton Fold Lane - End 215 1720 CW - Resurface & Binder

Middleton Township NMidd Hillside Drive John Lee Fold / Cromer Street - End 139 1112 CW - Resurface

Middleton Township WMidd Eskdale Drive Langdale Drive - End 99 792 CW - Resurface & Binder

Middleton Township East Middleton Mainway East Full Length 3536 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Middleton Township North 
Middleton

Baker Street Highfield Street - to end 808 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Middleton Township North 
Middleton

Fielding Street Clough Road - end 859 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Page 19



Middleton Township West Middleton Hartsop Drive Full Length 832 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Middleton Township West Middleton Whinfell Drive Full Length 948 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Middleton Township South Middleton Stratford Road Full Length 804 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Middleton Township South Middleton Evesham Close Full Length 699 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Middleton Township South Middleton Evesham Road
Arden Avenue to Walsingham 

Avenue
2453 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Middleton Township Hopwood Hall Tewksbury Avenue Full Length 443 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Middleton Township Hopwood Hall Tintern Road Whalley Road to Hopwood Road 1526 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Pennines Township LLake Stockton Street Joint at Lidl entrance  - End 79 632 CW - Resurface & Binder

Pennines Township LLake Stockton Street 50 - 191 222 1776 CW - Resurface & Binder

Pennines Township Wd&Wl Princess Avenue Wardle Road - End 34 272 CW - Resurface

Pennines Township Wd&Wl Dearnley Close Entrance junction 49 392 CW - Resurface

Pennines Township Sb&Fg West Street Yorkshire Street - End 36 288 CW - Reconstruction

Pennines Township Mr&Nh Smith Hill Bridg Street junction entrance 153 1224 CW - Resurface & Binder

Pennines Township Littleborough 
Lakeside 

Furness Avenue Full Length 1260 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Pennines Township Littleborough 
Lakeside 

Tintern Avenue Full Length 988 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Pennines Township Littleborough 
Lakeside 

Beechwood Avenue Full Length 773 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Pennines Township Smallbridge & 
Firgrove

Great Howarth Full Length 876 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Pennines Township Smallbridge & 
Firgrove

Rhodes 
Street/Kilter/Louise

Full Length 2059 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Pennines Township Wardle & West 
Littleborough

Ribble Avenue Full Length 931 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Pennines Township Wardle & West 
Littleborough

Sycamore Close Full Length 639 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Pennines Township Wardle & West 
Littleborough

Salts Drive Full Length 903 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Pennines Township Wardle & West 
Littleborough

Petts Crescent Full Length 991 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Pennines Township Milnrow & 
Newhey

Chadwick Close Full Length 822 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Pennines Township Milnrow & 
Newhey

Royds Street Full Length 1609 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Page 20



Heywood NHeyw Lime Grove Cedar Avenue - End 61 488 CW - Resurface & Binder

Heywood NHeyw Greenfield Court Wilton Grove - End 55 440 CW - Resurface & Binder

Heywood NHeyw Tonge Street Aspinall Street - Miller Street 145 1160 CW - Resurface & Binder

Heywood NHeyw Pitt Street Bridge Street - End 39 312 CW - Resurface & Binder

Heywood WHeyw Partington Street Bury Old Road - End 131 1048 CW - Resurface & Binder

Heywood North Heywood Orchard Street Mutual Street - Fold Street 1306 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Heywood North Heywood Wild Street Promenade/Dewhurst Street Area 1408 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Heywood North Heywood Mutual Street Aspinall Street - Woodland Road 2053 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Heywood West Heywood Brayshaw Close Full Length 1078 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Heywood West Heywood Mills Street Full Length 919 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Heywood West Heywood Wham Bar Drive Derby Street - Cul-de-sac end 1292 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Heywood Hopwood Hall Hind Hill Street Egerton Street - No. 143 635 CW - Micro-Asphalt

Page 21



 

Middleton Township Committee  
 

Date of Meeting 11th November 2021 
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Children’s Services and 
Education 

Report Author Fay Davies 

 Public/Private Document Public 
 

 

Secondary School Places 2022 - 2025 
 

 
Executive Summary 

 
1. The new Edgar Wood Academy was opened for 2021 year 7 intake in 

Middleton. The second new mainstream Secondary school for Rochdale 
borough, which will be run by the Star Academies trust, is due to open in 2023 
in Littleborough. The new Secondary SEN school, which will be run by the 
New Bridge Trust, is now scheduled to be open in 2023. 
 
This report covers details of the new school and capacity of school places in 
the secondary school sector. 

 
Recommendation 

 
2. Consider the proposals to meet the additional demand for secondary school 

places which will be brought to the Cabinet committee. 

 
Reason for Recommendation 

 

Page 22

Agenda Item 9



3. The council has a statutory duty to offer every pupil living in the borough, who 
applies, a Secondary school place. Where the council offers a school place 
that is over the statutory “safe walking distance” for the age of that child the 
council is required to provide free school transport. Because bus transport in 
the area is provided through Transport for Greater Manchester, any child 
offered a school place, which is over the statutory distance criteria, is offered 
a free bus pass that is provided from council funds. The council receives no 
central government funding for school bus transport. 
 
The council does receive Basic Need funding to provide additional school 
places for both permanent and temporary school building expansions and 
bulge classes. The allocation of Basic Need funding from central government 
is reported annually to the council Cabinet and the report this year was 
approved on 30th March 2021. 

 
Key Points for Consideration 

 

Page 23



4.  
 
 
 
 
4.1 

Contingency plans for Secondary school intake were last reported to Cabinet 
on 29th September 2020. For 2019 and 2020 intakes additional needed 
capacity was delivered by existing schools taking bulge classes, which were 
funded through Basic Need where capital works were required. 
 
For 2021 intake a Secondary school place shortage was local to the Middleton 
area and some surplus was forecast for Rochdale central schools. The 
difficulty in travelling times from Middleton to Rochdale centre meant that 
offering surplus places in Rochdale centre to families in Middleton was not 
deemed a viable option. Consequently the council worked closely with the 
Altus Trust and the Department for Education to produce plans and 
contingencies to deliver the needed places in a temporary location. Additional 
bulge places were also offered at four existing schools. 
 
In September 2021 the Edgar Wood Academy opened with 4 forms of entry, 
120 pupil capacity, at a temporary site at Hopwood Hall College Campus in 
Middleton. The Permanent site is due to open at a site close at Bowlee on 
Heywood Old Road, Middleton for September 2022. 
 
In September 2021 Wardle Academy also had a major building extension to 
provide 100 additional places; 50 for 2021 and 50 for 2022 intakes.  
 
Heywood and Middleton 
 
Because of the usual travel of pupils between Heywood and Middleton these 
areas are considered together. Available places and forecasts for pupils 
numbers are shown in figure 1 showing the expectation currently that schools 
in the Heywood and Middleton area will be at capacity despite the opening of 
the Edgar Wood Academy. 
 

 
Figure 1: Forecast for Places and expected pupils in the combined Heywood and Middleton area 

Page 24



Admission numbers for the next intake year are shown in the table below. 
 
School Pupil Admission Number for 2022 
Newhouse Academy 210 
Holy Family RC & CE College 150 
Middleton Technology School 270 
Cardinal Langley RC High School 210 
St. Anne's Academy 180 
Edgar Wood Academy 180 
Total 1200 

Table 1 Places at Heywood and Middleton schools for 2022 
 
Pennine and Rochdale 
 
There has been a shortage of places in the popular Pennine Secondary 
schools for some time. It is expected that additional capacity created at Wardle 
Academy for 2021 and 2022 intakes will be filled. In the combined Pennine 
and Rochdale areas there is on average a 9% drop in pupils attending 
Rochdale LA maintained schools from year 6 to year 7. This is predominantly 
pupils choosing to travel to private, independent, grammar schools or schools 
in other local authority areas. This drop in pupils does change year to year 
between 8% and 11% and means out of borough factors cause difficulty with 
the forecast.  
 

 
Figure 2: Secondary Intake forecast for Pennine and Rochdale 
 
The forecast shows insufficient places available in existing schools if the new 
Littleborough Star Academy does not open for 2023, but the new school on 
current forecasts should be able to accommodate the forecasted number of 
pupils from 2023/24 to 2026/27. The council will continue to work with the DfE, 
Star Academies and local stakeholders to help deliver the needed school. A 
back up plan will also be needed either creating bulge classes in existing 

Page 25



schools or alternative accommodation for the early opening of the Star 
academy Littleborough. 
 
School Pupil Admission Number for 2022 
Hollingworth Academy 270 
Wardle Academy 290 
St.Cuthbert's RC High 240 
Kingsway Park High 270 
Matthew Moss High 240 
Oulder Hill School 300 
Falinge Park High School 270 
Total 1880 

Table 2: Places at Pennine and Rochdale schools for 2022 
 
Other considerations 
As detailed in the Primary School Places 2022-2025 report in-year applications 
for places either after the start of year 7 or in higher years groups have been 
rising for some years in both the Primary sector and Secondary Sector. In the 
last academic year the number of in-year Secondary pupils arriving on roll has 
been higher than ever. 
 

 
 
Many of our Secondary schools are at capacity and the high rates of inflow of 
new pupils at the Secondary level is causing some issues. Last year 
Secondary schools accepted on-roll, and after the October school census, an 
additional 88 secondary pupils (net). While this is something the borough has 
seen before at Primary, it has never happened previously at Secondary. This 
includes 26 pupils arriving after the start of their final year of school (year 11).  
 
As detailed above Rochdale sees a net loss of children at Secondary transition 
and this has varied year to year depending on factors outside the borough. In 
2019 the popular Oldham Crompton House school completed a major 
extension and increased its intake by 50%. Next year (2022) a new school will 
open in Oldham offering additional places.  

Page 26



 
Alternatives Considered 
 
Alternatives are constantly under review and any impacts of the current 
pandemic on house building rates or timing of new developments will have 
knock on effects on school capacity 

 
Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5. The costs associated with co-ordinating admission arrangements are met 

from the Dedicated Schools Grant.   
 
Where applicable, schools offering additional pupil places to meet the LA’s 
statutory need may also be eligible for additional revenue funding from the 
Dedicated Schools Grant. The policy and funding available for basic need 
growth has to be agreed with Schools Forum 
 
Schools are funded based on the number of pupils. Whilst is it acknowledged 
that a school will have some vacant places, a high number of vacant places 
in a single year group created if pupils do not materialise as forecast will have 
an adverse effect on a school’s funding. This can be managed in the short 
term through the application of the Growth Fund policy but it is not sustainable 
longer term. 

 
Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6. The application of pupil place planning arrangements contributes to the 

Council Business Plan in ensuring an effective allocation process for school 
admissions. The council has a statutory duty to offer a school place to every 
child living in the borough and must manage the schools estate to meet the 
predicted need.   
 
Provision of sufficient Secondary school places, within the new school 
buildings that are being delivered through the centrally managed Free school 
programme, are not under control of the local authority, but because the 
statutory duty to provide places resides with the local authority then 
consequently the local authority needs to be ready to work with local partners 
to meet the needs of its residents if required. 
 
The financial risks are covered in the Costs and Budget Summary section 
above. 

  
Consultation 

 
7. In order to open the new Littleborough school the Star Academies trust need 

to run a statutory consultation to seek stakeholder views. 
 
Any temporary school accommodation that meets the criteria is required to 
go through the statutory planning consultation process. 

 

Page 27



Background Papers Place of Inspection 
 
8. n/a  

 

For Further Information Contact: Fay Davies 
 fay.davies@rochdale.gov.uk 

Page 28



 

Report to Middleton Township Committee  
 

Date of Meeting 11th November 2021 
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Children’s Services and 
Education 

Report Author Fay Davies 

 Public/Private Document Public 
 

 

Need for Primary School Places 2022-25 
 

 
Executive Summary 

 
1. Nationwide there was a notable drop in applications for Primary school for the 

September 2021 intake. Birth rate data from 2016/17 indicated that Rochdale 
should have a peak in births for this intake, similar to that seen for the 2017/18 
reception year intake. However, along with national trends, early indications 
are that Reception intakes have decreased and they are forecasted to 
continue to do so for the next few years. It is thought that school starts have 
been affected by both the pandemic (by stopping families from moving) and 
Brexit. 
 
Inflows of pupils arriving into the borough after the start of Reception intake, 
and in higher year groups, have been higher than ever since January 2021, 
leading to significant pressures in older primary school year groups. These 
‘in-year’ school applications plateaued towards the end of the 2019/20 due to 
the pandemic, but have bounced back up to be above previous levels 

 
Recommendation 

 
2. Consider the proposals to the changes of the Primary school estate to be 

brought in front of Rochdale Cabinet committee. 

 
Reason for Recommendation 

 

Page 29

Agenda Item 10



3. The council has a statutory duty to provide education and school places to all 
school aged children living in the borough and consequently has a duty to plan 
adequately for predicted pupil numbers. 
 
Current housing development plans along with possible housing allocations 
defined in the Places For Everyone, PFE (currently still under consultation) 
dictate that pupil numbers in Rochdale may continue to grow in some localities 
and plans must be put in place to create the needed school capacity.  
 
Drops in applications for Reception intake following national trends have 
started to affect forecasts for some area, Rochdale NW in particular.” 

 
Key Points for Consideration 

 

Page 30



4.  
 
4.1 

Heywood 
Heywood appears to have suffered a drop in applications along with national 
trends. It is not obvious whether this is temporary or more permanent issue. 
New housing completions in Heywood have decreased recently but housing 
coming forward at the junction 19 ‘South Heywood’ development will require 
a new school to be delivered through the Free School Presumption route. 
Timing of the new school will be crucial to maintain sufficient places as the 
housing comes forward in south Heywood. 
 

 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 
Reception 
Places 
Needed  

53 spare 35 spare 67 spare 78 spare  

Plans Discontinue 
bulge class at 
Harwood Park 

 Consideration must be taken on how much spare 
capacity is too much. Monitoring of the rate of building 
and pupils from the South Heywood development will 
inform any decision to reduce spare school capacity. 

Future 
Issues   

New housing coming forward in South Heywood will 
require a new 1 form entry school. 

 
In-year new arrivals for Key Stage 2 have been an issue and Woodland 
Primary created an additional year 4 class in 2020. 
 
Middleton 
Forecasts show that in Middleton additional places are needed from 2022/23 
to 2024/25. Middleton has high levels of in-flow and significant shortages of 
places are expected without additional capacity. During the 2020/21 academic 
year 34 additional pupils arrived on-roll in key stage 1 classes after the start 
of the school year just in Middleton. 
 

 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-
26 

Reception 
Places 
Needed 

10 places needed 51 places needed 5 place spare 40 spare 

Plans Provide a second and third year of temporary 
bulge classes at Hollin Primary    

Future Issues  Permanent expansion of school may be needed in central 
Middleton. 

 
In September 2018 and 2019 Reception year started with 62 and 85 spare 
places respectively. This amount of spare capacity caused significant issues 
with school financing locally. There are now 28 spare places in the 2018 intake 
and 55 spare places in the 2019 intake. It is important that sufficient classes 
are created at key stage 1 as class size legislation means that there is a limit 
to the number of places that can be offered in each class. Forecasts of in-year 
growth show that the 2019 intake, mentioned above, will have insufficient 
places by 2024/25 (in what will be year 5), with the 2018 intake having 
insufficient places in the 2023/24 year 5 class. The 2020 intake will have 
insufficient places by the start of the 2022/23 academic year. The table below 
shows almost all year groups in Middleton will have insufficient places going 
forward. 
 

Page 31



MIDDLETON 
FORECAST 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 
Year 1 places 705 675 675 675 
Expected pupils 689 716 758 700 
     
Year 2 places 675 705 675 675 
Expected pupils 688 711 739 782 
     
Year 3 places 675 675 705 675 
Expected pupils 650 715 739 768 
     
Year 4 places 705 675 675 705 
Expected pupils 695 664 730 754 
     
Year 5 places 675 705 675 675 
Expected pupils 675 709 677 744 
     
Year 6 places 720 675 705 675 
Expected pupils 699 686 720 689 

 
Pennine 
For the 2021 Reception intake for north Pennine the underlying birth rate was 
high, but schools appear to have under-recruited considerably. This could be 
due to national issues mentioned previously, or local issues. Local issues 
include the rebuilding programme at Littleborough Primary school and the 
continued lack of Secondary school places. Historically north Pennine is a net 
importer of children, with more children arriving in Reception than are born 
locally. There is an expectation that, when the Littleborough Primary re-build 
project is complete, and the new Secondary school is open, that families will 
have confidence to apply for school places in this area again. 
 

  2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 
Extra 
Reception 
Places Needed 

58 spare 59 spare 62 spare  69 spare 

Plans Spare capacity will be kept under review, but temporary issues are thought 
to be impacting current applications and applications for the 2022/23 year 
will be monitored closely. 

Pe
nn

in
es

 N
 

  

Future Issues Littleborough Primary new build school and the new Secondary school, 
due to be opened in 2023/24, will impact on the desirability of places in 
this area. New housing is also coming forward. 

Extra 
Reception 
Places Needed 

11 spare 34 spare 24 spare 29 spare 

Pe
nn

in
es

 S
 S

 

Plans/ Future 
issues 

 
Plans will remain under review 
. 

 
Rochdale 
In the NE/NW area the combined excess of spare places is a concern, 
however applications from families new to Rochdale are an issue. New 
applications for places ‘in-year’ tend to be in the Rochdale NE and central 
areas and numbers of new applications for school places through the in-year 

Page 32



process were larger last year than any year previously despite the ongoing 
pandemic (figure 1a and 1b below). 
 

 
Figure 1a: The last 4 years of data on annual rates of applications for new 
school places from families new to the borough.  
 

 
Figure 1b: The last 4 years of data on annual rates of applications for new 
school places from families new to the UK. 
 

  2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 
Extra 
Reception 
Places 
Needed 

8 spare (NE) 
59 spare (NW) 

 53 spare (NE) 
47 spare (NW) 

27 spare (NE) 
58 spare (NW) 

39 spare (NE) 
72 spare (NW) 

N
W

 
 

an
d 

N
E 

R
oc

hd
al

e 
 

Plans/ 
Future 
Issues 

NE area: Spare capacity will be reviewed, however high in-year admissions in 
NE Rochdale mean that spare capacity needed to accommodate in year moves. 
NW area: Spare capacity in Rochdale NW is too high 

 
In year applications in the Rochdale NE area are forecast to show schools 
filling to capacity. Some of these children will be offered places in the 
Rochdale NW area.  
 
ROCHDALE NE 
FORECAST  2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 

Page 33



Year 1 places 429 429 429 429 
Expected pupils 431 437 391 418 
     
Year 2 places 429 429 429 429 
Expected pupils 423 445 450 403 
     
Year 3 places 429 429 429 429 
Expected pupils 403 433 455 461 
     
Year 4 places 429 429 429 429 
Expected pupils 422 405 436 458 
     
Year 5 places 459 429 429 429 
Expected pupils 444 431 414 445 
     
Year 6 places 429 459 429 429 
Expected pupils 431 456 443 426 

 
In the south and central areas of Rochdale, underlying birth rates show a small 
peak for 2023/24 before declining in 2025/26. In-flows of children into the 
central area continue to be challenging, with schools being asked to take 
additional children in higher year classes. Housing developments in the south 
of the area have also impacted on the sufficiency of places. Timing of new 
housing developments and creation of sufficient places is going to be an issue 
going forward in the SW area and current forecasts of spare capacity will need 
to be reviewed. A new school will be needed depending on the speed of arrival 
of new housing. 
 

 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 
Extra 
Reception 
Places 
Needed 

33 spare (C) 
42 spare (SW) 

22 spare (C) 
23 spare (SW) 

32 spare (C) 
36 spare (SW) 

48 spare (C) 
42 spare (SW) 

Plans Spare capacity in the central zone will be kept under review but large numbers of in-
year applications requires sufficient capacity 

C
 a

nd
 S

W
 R

oc
hd

al
e 

 

Future 
Issues 

 Additional housing developments in the south means a new school will be needed in 
the area in the long term. 

 
 
Summary 

I. Start Presumption route for Heywood and Rochdale SW new 
schools. 

 
II. Extra capacity is needed in Middleton and the bulge class at Hollin 

will be continued and more capacity sought for 2023 which may 
involve school expansion. 

 
III. Investigate options for removing capacity in NW Rochdale if 

required. 
 
Alternatives Considered 

Page 34



Alternatives are constantly under review and any impacts of the current 
pandemic on house building rates or timing of new developments will have 
knock on effects on school capacity.. 

 
Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5. The costs associated with co-ordinating admission arrangements are met 

from the Dedicated Schools Grant.   
 
Where applicable, schools offering additional pupil places to meet the LA’s 
statutory need may also be eligible for additional revenue funding from the 
Dedicated Schools Grant. The policy and funding available for basic need 
growth has to be agreed with Schools Forum. 
 
Schools are funded based on the number of pupils. Whilst is it acknowledged 
that a school will have some vacant places, a high number of vacant places 
in a single year group created if pupils do not materialise as forecast will have 
an adverse effect on a school’s funding. This can be managed in the short 
term through the application of the Growth Fund policy but it is not sustainable 
longer term. 

 
Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6. The application of pupil place planning arrangements contributes to the 

Council Business Plan in ensuring an effective allocation process for school 
admissions. The council has a statutory duty to offer a school place to every 
child living in the borough and must manage the schools estate to meet the 
predicted need.   
 
For any new school needed the Council does not have under its direct control 
the legal mechanisms to create new schools and must, under the Academies 
Act 2010 and Education Act 2011, seek Department for Education approved 
academy trust providers to provide the schools. Guidance from the DfE, for 
- delivery of a school, using the Presumption will be followed when 
appropriate 
 
The financial risks are covered in the Costs and Budget Summary section 
above. 

  
Consultation 

 
7. Plans developed from this report for any permanent school extensions will 

be presented to the relevant Township Committees for consideration, before 
being reported to Cabinet. A formal consultation process will be conducted 
as defined by the government guidance on Prescribed Alterations to Schools 
if required. 
 
 

 

Page 35



Background Papers Place of Inspection 
 
8. n/a  

 

For Further Information Contact: Fay Davies 
fay.davies@rochdale.gov.uk 

Page 36



Appendix 1: The Need for Primary School Places 2022-25 
 
Heywood 
Until 2019/20 the number of reception pupils arriving in Reception classes had been 
significantly higher than the number being born in the area (figure 1). In September 
2020 pupil numbers started dropping and September 2021 numbers look to have 
dropped again. This reflects the significant drops found in other local authorities in 
both Greater Manchester and nation-wide. In Heywood it may also be linked to a 
decrease in new house completions. Current forecasts show a peak for 2023/24 with 
intakes decreasing following birth rates through to 2025/26. 
 

 
Figure 1: Heywood Reception intake forecast 
 
The predicted spare capacity in Reception class is expected to grow to 2025/26 
(figure 1 & figure 2). Previous bulge classes created at Harwood Park Primary 
School will be removed. 
 

 
Figure 2: Predicted Reception Places and Expected Pupils for Heywood 
 

Page 37



The number of Reception class places currently available in Heywood schools in 
September 2021 is set out in the table 1: 
School Places School Places School Places 
Heap Bridge 25 St Joseph's RC  60 Hopwood  60 
Our Lady & St 
Paul's RC 30 Harwood Park 90 St Michael's 

CE VA 30 

St Margaret's 
CE VA 30 St Luke's CE VC 60   

Woodland   90 All Souls CE VC 30   
Table 1: Number of Reception places available Heywood 
 
Middleton 
 
Middleton reception pupil numbers are due to peak again in 2023/24 and numbers of 
pupils coming from new housing developments are increasing in the area. Figure 3 
also shows school census intake numbers and on roll numbers at the end of the 
academic year. 
 

 
Figure 3: Middleton Reception Intake forecast data 
 
There is a predicted shortage of Reception capacity from 2022/23 to 2024/25, and a 
continuation of the bulge class in Hollin Primary is needed. Further additional 
capacity for 2023/24 will also be needed with a permanent expansion possibly 
needed at a Middleton school.(figure 3). 

Page 38



 
Figure 4: Reception Places and Expected Pupil numbers for Middleton 
 
The number of Reception class places currently available in Middleton schools in 
September 2021 is set out in the table 2: 
 
School Places School Places School Places 
St John 
Fisher RC 30 Middleton Parish 

CE VA 60 St Peter's RC 30 

Hollin 60 Parkfield 30 Alkrington 60 

Boarshaw 60 Elm Wood 60 St Thomas More 
RC 45 

Bowlee Park 120 Little Heaton CE 
VC 30 St Michael's CE 

VA 30 

St Mary's RC 60 St Gabriel's CE VC 30   
Table 2: Reception Places available Middleton 
 
Pennine 
 
The applications to schools in north Pennines have dropped significantly (figure 5). It 
is believed this is due to local factors; including a temporary drop in the number of 
new house completions, the rebuilding of Littleborough Primary and the delay in the 
new Secondary school. The current spare capacity will be kept under review.  
 
Schools in south Pennines have in the past seen intakes closer to the underlying 
birth rates and there the current capacity is sufficient to meet the underlying birth 
rates (figure 6). Capacity will be kept under review. 

Page 39



 
Figure 5: Reception Intake forecast for Pennines North 

 
Figure 6: Reception Intake forecast for Pennines South 
 

Page 40



 
Figure 7: Places and Expected Pupils Pennines North 

 
Figure 8: Places and Expected Pupils Pennines South 
 
The number of Reception class places currently available in Pennine schools in 
September 2021 is set out in the following table: 
School Places School Places School Places 
Stansfield Hall 
CE VC 20 St Andrew's 

CE VC 60 Moorhouse 30 

Littleborough 60 Smithy Bridge 60 Crossgates 45 
Holy Trinity CE 
VA 30 Hamer 45 Milnrow Parish CE 

VA 30 

St Mary's RC 30 Kentmere 
Academy 45 Newhey 45 

St James' CE  F 30 Alice Ingham 
RC 24 St Thomas' CE 

VA 21 

Table 3: Pennines Schools Places 
  

Page 41



 
Rochdale 
 
Rochdale Township includes almost half of children educated in Rochdale Borough. 
For school place planning purposes this has been split up into four areas as shown 
in figure 9 below. Data is shown for two zones; North West and North East Rochdale 
combined and Central and South West Rochdale combined. 

 
Figure 9: Rochdale Borough Primary Planning Areas 
 

Page 42



 
Figure 10: Forecast for North East and North West areas of Rochdale 
Township. 
 
A peak in the combined area of Rochdale NW and NE Reception classes intakes 
due to birth rates occurred for 2020 intake and the current forecast shows similar 
levels of need for 2022/23, before dropping for 2023/24. Underlying birth rates in NE 
Rochdale indicate that current cohorts are due to peak again in 2024/25. In the NW 
Rochdale area births numbers have dropped from 322 for 2019/20 intake and will 
reach 284 for 2025/26 intake. This suggests a current level of spare capacity in NW 
Rochdale that maybe unsustainable. Any reduction in PAN will undergo a full 
consultation process as required. 
 

 
Figure 11: Spaces and Expected pupils in North-east Rochdale 

Page 43



 
Figure 12: Spaces and expected pupils North-west Rochdale 
 
The birth rate in the SW and Central Rochdale area has zigzagged for several years 
and pupil numbers have not followed this trend. There is currently sufficient capacity 
predicted over the combined area although, as shown in Figure 13, the number on-
roll in Reception class increased by 33 pupils during last year in the area due to the 
very high rates of in-year applications. 
 

 
Figure 13: Reception Forecast for Rochdale Central and South-West areas. 
 
Rochdale Central and SW Reception classes are forecasted to have spare capacity 
for the next 4 years (figure 13 & figure 14). Spare capacity needs to be maintained 
because of in year applications centrally and new housing coming forward in the SW 
area. 

Page 44



 
Figure 14: spaces and Expected pupils in the Central Rochdale area 

 
Figure 15: Spaces and Expected pupils in the South-west Rochdale area 
 
The number of Reception class places currently available in Rochdale Township 
schools in September 2021 is set out in the following table: 
School Places School Places School Places 
Healey F 30 Whittaker Moss 60 Marland Hill 60 
Shawclough 60 St Vincent's RC 60 Brimrod 30 
All Saints CE 
VA 30 Bamford 

Academy 60 Ashfield Valley 30 

Greenbank 60 Belfield    60 St Mary's CE VC 30 
St Patrick's 
RC 45 Sacred Heart 

RC  30 Sandbrook 90 

Heybrook 90 Broadfield 60 Holy Family RC  30 
Meanwood 60 St John's RC  30 St Edward's CE 

VC 52 

Norden 60 Deeplish 
Academy 60 Castleton 60 

Spotland 60 St Peter's CE 
VC 60 St Gabriel's RC   30 

Caldershaw 30 Lowerplace 90 St John'sCE  
T'ham 15 

Page 45



Table 4: Places in Rochdale Township in September 2018 
 

Page 46


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	Minutes , 19/08/2021 Middleton Township Committee

	7 Objection to Proposed Traffic Order, Installation of Zebra Crossing, Kirkway, Alkrington, Middleton
	8 Highways LTP Capital Programme 2022/24
	Append. 1 for Highways LTP Capital Programme 2022/24
	Sheet1


	9 Secondary School Places 2022 - 2025
	10 Need for Primary School Places 2022-25
	Append. 1 for Need for Primary School Places 2022-25
	Appendix 1: The Need for Primary School Places 2022-25



